MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SERVICE DELIVERY COMMITTEE HELD AT THE COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2018 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT

Councillor G A Boulter	(Chair)
Councillor Mrs S Z Haq	(Vice Chair)

COUNCILLORS

L A Bentley J W Boyce Mrs L M Broadley F S Broadley D M Carter Miss M V Chamberlain Mrs L Eaton JP K J Loydall JP R H Thakor

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

S J Ball	(Senior Democratic Services Officer / Legal Officer)
D M Gill	(Head of Law & Governance / Monitoring Officer)
Mrs J Griffith	(Head of Customer Services & Business Transformation)
S Hinds	(Director of Finance, & Transformation / Section 151 Officer)
Mrs A Lennox MBE	(Head of Leisure & Wellbeing Services)
C Raymakers	(Head of Finance, Revenues & Benefits)
Miss J Sweeney	(Democratic Services Officer)
A Thorpe	(Head of Planning, Development & Regeneration)

29. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillors E R Barr, Miss A R Bond and Mrs K M Chalk.

30. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

None.

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

32. <u>MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING</u>

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The minutes of the meeting of the previous Committee held on 11 September 2018 be taken as read, confirmed and signed.

33. ACTION LIST ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The Action List arising from the meeting of the previous Committee held on 11 September 2018 be read, confirmed and noted.

In accordance with Rule 7.3 of Part 4 of the Constitution, the Chair moved for the order of business to be altered and taken in the order as reflected in the minutes.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The order of business be altered accordingly.

34. <u>REVIEW OF SCALE OF FEES & CHARGES (2019/20)</u>

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 10 - 25) which asked it to recommend the proposed Scale of Fees and Charges for 2019/20 ("the proposed Scale") to the Policy, Finance and Development Committee for approval together with a Scheme of Delegation.

With regards to paragraph 2.3, it was confirmed to Members that there was no recommended increase for the Garden Waste Collection Scheme.

Members raised concerns regarding how cost effective the Council's Pavilion facilities currently were for the Authority and whether sufficient provisions were in place to ensure that they produce a viable income stream. Officers assured the Committee that further information regarding hiring availability and fees for the premises on Saturdays evenings would be provided to the Members outside the meeting.

The Committee welcomed recommendation B and accepted the importance of delegation and flexibility with regards to charging charges to encourage a more commercial approach. It was agreed that the recommendation should also include a reference to maximising community usage.

It was moved by Councillor J W Boyce, seconded by Councillor K J Loydall and

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

- (i) The proposed Scale of Fees and Charges for 2019/20 (as set out in Appendix 1) be recommended to the Policy, Finance and Development Committee for approval; and
- (ii) Delegated authority be given to the Director of Finance and Transformation to allow flexibility to charging charges to encourage a more commercial approach to maximising income and community usage.

35. <u>PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS</u>

35a. <u>PETITION AGAINST PINNACLE CLEANERS</u>

Service Delivery Committee Tuesday, 20 November 2018 The Committee received petitions that stood referred to it by Full Council at its meeting on 02 October 2018. The petitions requested action from the Authority to improve service delivery by the Council's cleaning contractor Pinnacle. Copies of the petitions were available at the meeting for Members to view.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was:

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

The receipt of the petitions be noted by Members and the item be deferred to a subsequent meeting of the Committee for consideration.

36. <u>CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)</u>

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 26 - 33) which asked it to note the performance of the Council against its Corporate Objectives during the second quarter of 2018/19.

It was reported that the at the end of the second quarter, of the 96 performances measured 74 were green, 12 were amber and 10 had red status. Quarter two Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) were also highlighted to Members, showing that out of the 6 completed, 5 were green and 1 red.

Members requested that going forward, a more consistent method of measurement was required regarding Supersonic Boom. The Committee requested that the Council set a long term target for the project.

Officers indicated to Members that with regards to planning targets, they were set as Government Performance requirements however through negotiation with developers, an extension of time was allocated in the majority of applications made to the Council. It was suggested by the Committee that targets should show prevalent averages to show a more accurate representation of whether a target was being met.

Regarding Table 3, Exception Reporting (at page 30), Officers acknowledged that the figures at ESP16 could be misleading, however the Committee was advised that moving forward, the target would be set against the national average of 11% as opposed to the current target. Regarding ESP29, it was acknowledged that the set collection rate for Council Tax had not been achieved in previous years due to the challenges faced from the introduction of the Council Tax Support Scheme. The Committee requested that targets for collections rates needed to expressly be reported going forward, together with an appropriate action plan if targets were not being met.

A Member of the Committee queried whether it would be feasible to introduce monitoring of planning enforcement targets and devise a reporting mechanism to ensure satisfactory levels of performance. The Director of Finance and Transformation undertook to look at the feasability of incorporating this into the scheme.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report and appendix be noted.

37. <u>COMMUNITY SERVICES UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)</u>

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 34 - 40) which asked it to note the progress made in delivering community services during the second quarter of 2018/19.

Due to the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, it was reported that there has been an increase in the number of homeless applications made in the Borough. The Committee suggested that Officers produce statistical tracking for the various stages of the Personal Housing Plans (PHPs) to show clarity on the pressures that the service is experiencing. The Committee were notified that the Council had entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with a local homelessness organisation to provide support on receiving referrals, as well as receiving a grant of \pounds 5,000 through the Government's Cold Weather Fund. It was confirmed that both these developments would assist the Council in tackling homelessness in the Borough.

Members were advised that with regards to the Lightbulb Project, the total Disability Facilities Grant for 2018/19 was \pm 376,000. As of November 2018, the project had committed to 71 projects in the Borough with a total spend of \pm 215,000.

With reference to paragraph 7.1, Members disagreed with the sentiment of the information provided due to the differing structure of the Council in comparison to Lightbulb. It was confirmed to Members that the specification of the organisation was different and the scheme was now controlled under one assessment, as opposed to being a two tiered assessment control. With reference to paragraph 8.2, it was confirmed that the restricted parking scheme was set to be introduced before the end of the month at Churchill Close car park.

The Committee was provided with the Capital Programme (CP) 2018/19 – Quarter Two Budget Outturn. Members requested that an addition be made to Appendix 1 to show the projected outcome of Capital Programmes in order to obtain a clearer view of budgets. Officers advised that additional resources and personnel had also been put in place in order to progress the delivery of and better forecast the CP going forward.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report and appendix be noted.

38. <u>REVENUES & BENEFITS UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)</u>

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 41- 45) which asked it to note the activity within the Revenues and Benefits service area during the second quarter of 2018/19 and the progress of Universal Credit implementation.

It was highlighted to Members that due to staffing issues, there had been a slight decline in the collection rate for council tax, however Officers assured the Committee that plans were in place to bring this back under control. In contrast to this, the Benefits section was shown to have continued to perform strongly with an average process time of 14.45 days for new claims.

Members were advised that with regards to Universal Credit, activity surrounding the service had increased. In addition to the recruitment of a second Rent Income Officer, the service was designating further resources on the "Welfare" aspect of the service through

Chair's Initials the re-design of a job post within the department.

In addition to this, Members queried the legality of the Council's ability for it to access information from other service departments to determine whether an individual met the requirements of managed payments. It was confirmed by the Head of Law and Governance that, as advised by the Information Commissioner's guidance, information can be obtained through extracting data from internal data systems, so long as the collated information stays with the Council and there was a secondary lawful basis for doing so.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report be noted.

39. HEALTH, WELLBEING & LEISURE SERVICES UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 46 - 52) which asked it to note the progress achieved across a variety of projects within the Borough. An update regarding the Council's leisure contract was also provided.

It was reported to Members that the Council's pre-procurement figures for the Council's Leisure services had tripled over the last full year.

Members reiterated their concerns regarding the Brocks Hill Café. The Head of Leisure and Wellbeing Services addressed the concerns by responding with a detailed response from the Council's leisure provider, Sports and Leisure Management Ltd (SLM). The response included information regarding the review that was undertaken of the SLM's procedures and policies. Training had been provided to staff to ensure that all employees were working in accordance with SLM's standards. Members were also advised that the pricing was benchmarked to a competitive level, with both hot and cold food being made available at the Café. The Committee requested that continued updates be provided to Members with regard to Brocks Hill Café, in order to monitor improvement going forward.

A Member proposed that the current reward scheme, which allows subscribers of the 'Everyone Active' and 'Pride of the Borough' membership cards up to 20% discount at all SLM-run establishments, should be amended to also include discounts for Armed Forces employees. Officers informed the Committee that they would consult with the leisure provider and update Members at the next Committee.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report be noted.

40. <u>GREENING OF THE BOROUGH AND OPERATIONAL SERVICES UPDATE (Q2</u> 2018/19)

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 53 - 59) which asked it to note the update on the Borough's green and natural spaces and the work undertaken by Operational Services throughout the second quarter of 2018/19.

The Committee commended the efforts of staff and welcomed the increase in mixed dry

Service Delivery Committee Tuesday, 20 November 2018 recycling during quarter two, as well as the decrease in refuse collected. It was requested that consideration should be given to merging the data provided within the two graphs for 2017 and 2018 into a single presentable graph, to enable comparison that would highlight the significant progress made in a more prevalent manner.

It was noted by Members that volunteering levels had declined in recent years. Officers advised that this was relevant to the reduction of staffing for projects. The Committee reiterated the importance of the Borough's volunteering programme and requested an action plan be created to increase the support and development of volunteers.

A Member advised the Committee that they had consulted with Oadby & Wigston Lions Club and confirmed they would be willing to offer help in terms of volunteers for any projects that the Borough may have. In addition to this, it was confirmed to Members that the new Volunteering Policy is on course for completion at the end of December 2018.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report be noted.

41. FACILITIES SERVICES UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 60 - 63) which asked it to note the details of the work completed by the Facilities section within the second quarter of the year 2018/19.

Members were advised of the completion of the Garden of Remembrance at Oadby Cemetery. In addition, it was hoped that a saving of £4,000 would be achievable with regards to the damaged equipment located at Brocks Hill Play Area, depending on whether the supplier was able to repair the item, as opposed to it being replaced.

In response to Member queries, the Committee was advised that works regarding the Horsewell Lane Pavilion would start shortly after the scheduled 'Ground Breaking' Event, which would be taking place on 03 December 2018.

In regards to Ervins Lock Footbridge, it was confirmed that Officers are currently in the process of developing an agreement between the Council and the Canal and River Trust. In response to the Committee raising concerns over potential time delays and challenges regarding the funding of the works, Officers assured Members that all actions were being taken to expedite the project. However, further confirmation regarding the need for a stoppage period to be set before works could begin was still required from the Canal and River Trust. A funding package was said to be in place, which needed to be reviewed periodically to ensure it was sufficient.

The Committee requested that quarterly updates regarding Horsewell Lane Pavilion and Ervins Lock Footbridge should be provided as part of the Facilities Service updates to give details of the projects as they progress.

Members requested that Officers should aim to produce a strategy enabling better coordination between Brocks Hill Visitor Centre, Brocks Hill Café and the Play Area at Parklands Leisure Centre. The Committee stated that going forward, more focus ought to be made on the capital and income investment of the sites as a whole, rather than being viewed as single outlets.

Chair's Initials By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report noted.

42. <u>CUSTOMER SERVICE AND TRANSFORMATION UPDATE (Q2 2018/19)</u>

The Committee received the report (as set out on pages 64 - 67) which asked it to note the activity within the Customer Service & Transformation section during the second quarter of 2018/19.

The Committee reiterated the importance of the Council taking into account the current trends of how customers interact with the Council. A Member of the Committee enquired whether the facility to pay by Direct Debit could be extended across a wider range of Council services. Officers confirmed that there were risks and difficulties associated with this approach, largely in relation to customers potentially cancelling Direct Debits therefore impacting on income streams.

Members requested that Officers continue to provide an update on the Investors in People Action Plan. If the status remained as 'amber' by the next reporting period, the Committee requested that action should be taken to address this.

By affirmation of the meeting, it was

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT:

That the contents of the report be noted.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 8.35 PM

Ø

Chair

Tuesday, 29 January 2019

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR